
 

 
 

CULTUS LAKE PARK BOARD 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING NOTICE 

 
Wednesday, September 15, 2021 

5:00 PM 
Cultus Lake Park Office Boardroom 

4165 Columbia Valley Highway, Cultus Lake, BC 
 
 
Time Change Notice - Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting will be held at 
5:00 pm on September 15, 2021 instead of 7:00 pm.  
 
The Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting will be open to the first 10 members 
of the public by registration. Please email Rachel.litchfield@cultuslake.bc.ca by 
Noon on September 15, 2021.  
 
Or please feel free to join the meeting, participants will be muted upon entry to the 
meeting but will be able to ask questions during question period. 
 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85136397549?pwd=YjJiMWcvdEJQYnFqWi96SW9XV
kZlUT09 
 
Meeting ID: 851 3639 7549 
Passcode: 565739 
 
 
The Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting video will be available to view on 
our website the following day at www.cultuslake.bc.ca/board-meeting-videos/ 
 
Please feel free to email questions for the Public Question Period no later than 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 by 4:30 pm to Rachel.litchfield@cultuslake.bc.ca  

mailto:Rachel.litchfield@cultuslake.bc.ca
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85136397549?pwd=YjJiMWcvdEJQYnFqWi96SW9XVkZlUT09
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85136397549?pwd=YjJiMWcvdEJQYnFqWi96SW9XVkZlUT09
https://www.cultuslake.bc.ca/board-meeting-videos/
mailto:Rachel.litchfield@cultuslake.bc.ca


 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2021\2021 09 15\1 2021.09.15 cultus lake park board regular meeting agenda package.docx 

 
 

CULTUS LAKE PARK BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2021 
5:00 PM 

PARK OFFICE BOARDROOM  
4165 Columbia Valley Highway, Cultus Lake, BC 

 
 (1) CALL TO ORDER 

 
 (2) RESOLUTION TO PROCEED TO CLOSED MEETING (4:00 PM) 

 
  THAT the meeting be closed to the public to consider matters pursuant to the following 

sections of the Community Charter: 
Section 90 (1), (c) labour relations or other employee relations; 
Section 90 (1), (d) the security of the property of the Municipality. 

   
 (3) RECONVENE 
   

Page 1 (4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
   

 (a) THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the Agenda for the Regular Meeting of August 
18, 2021; and  

   
  THAT all delegations, reports, correspondence and other information set to the Agenda be 

received. 
   
 (5) ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
   

Page 5  (a) THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board adopt the minutes of the Regular Meeting held August 18, 
2021.  

   
 (6) ADOPTION OF COMMITTEE MINUTES 
   
Page 13  (a) THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the July 16, Village Center Planning and 

Development Committee Minutes. 
   
Page 17 (b) THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the August 20, Village Center Planning and 

Development Committee Minutes. 
   
 (7) CORRESPONDENCE  
   
 (a) Cultus Lake Sewer Complaint 
Page 21  • Email dated August 24, 2021 from resident, Brenda Cosgrove 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the email from resident, Brenda Cosgrove. 
   

001



AGENDA  September 15, 2021 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting  Page 2 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2021\2021 09 15\1 2021.09.15 cultus lake park board regular meeting agenda package.docx 

  

 
   
 (8) BYLAWS  
   
 (a) Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1179, 2020, Amendment Bylaw No. 1196, 2021 
Page 25  • Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1179, 2020, Amendment Bylaw No. 1196, 2021 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final readings to the Boating and Foreshore Bylaw 

No. 1179, 2020, Amendment Bylaw No. 1196, 2021. 
   
 (b) Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1197, 2021  
Page 27  • Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1197, 2021 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final readings to the Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw 

No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1197, 2021.  
   
 (9) REPORTS BY STAFF 
   
 (a) Parking Options for Greenspace/Fire Lane Usage 
Page 29  • Report dated September 15, 2021 from Jacquie Spencer, Manager of Visitor Services, 

Accommodations and Bylaw Enforcement 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board continue to designate Area #4, #5, #7, #8, #9, #12, and 

#13 as Fire Lanes, and further, to direct staff to proceed with the development of “No Parking” 
signage for these areas. 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct staff to develop Area #1 as a designated fire lane 
between 109 and 110/111 with one parking stall on the side of 110 First Avenue. 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct staff to develop Area #2 by adding four (4) parking 
stalls with a public access pathway between 211 First Avenue and 213 First Avenue. 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct staff to arrange to have a land survey completed 
regarding Area #3, between 116 First Avenue and 118 First Avenue to confirm space 
availability for two parking stalls and a public access pathway. 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct staff to develop Area #6 as a designated fire lane 
between 132 First Avenue and 134 First Avenue, with option for one parking stall on the side 
of 134 First Avenue 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct staff to extend Area #10 & Area #11, Birch Street 
Park, by arranging to have the Mailbox relocated to add one additional parking stall. 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct staff to Area #14 between 232 First Avenue and 234 
First Avenue by adding four (4) parking stalls, two off Second Avenue and two off First Avenue 
including a public access pathway. 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct staff to develop Area #15, 212 First Avenue, by 
adding two parking stalls and a public access pathway.  
 

   
 

002



AGENDA  September 15, 2021 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting  Page 3 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2021\2021 09 15\1 2021.09.15 cultus lake park board regular meeting agenda package.docx 

  

 
 (b) Around the Lake Give ‘R Take 30 Special Event 
Page 51  • Report dated September 15, 2021, Amanda Nadeau, Communications, Media and 

Events Coordinator 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the Around the Lake Give ‘R Take 30 Trail Race 

from 6:00 am to 2:00 pm on October 16th, 2021 and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board waives parking fees for up to 50 race volunteer vehicles 
in Parking Lot B for Around the Lake Give ‘R Take 30 from 6:00 am to 2:00 pm on October 
16, 2021. 
 

 (c) Sandhu Wedding Ceremony Event  
Page 61  • Report dated September 15, 2021, from Amanda Nadeau, Communications, Media and 

Events Coordinator  
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the Sandhu Wedding Ceremony on October 23, 

2021, with use of Dock 12. 
 

 (10) REPORTS BY COMMISSIONERS 
   
 

Page 65 
(a) Recommendation from the Village Center Planning and Development Committee 

• Report dated September 15, 2021 from Kirk Dzaman, Chair, Community Events and 
Engagement Committee 

   
  THAT the Village Center Planning and Development Committee request the Cultus Lake Park 

Board consider funding for professional consultation regarding the planning and re development 
of the Village Center during the 2022 budget process. 

   
 (11) COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION  
   
 (12) PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
   
 (13) ADJOURNMENT 
   
  THAT the Regular Meeting of the Cultus Lake Park Board held on September 15, 2021 be adjourned. 

 

003



004



 

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\2021.8..17 

 

CULTUS LAKE PARK BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 

MINUTES 
Wednesday, August 18, 2021 

CULTUS LAKE PARK OFFICE BOARDROOM  
4165 Columbia Valley Highway, Cultus Lake, BC 

 
Present Commissioner D. Renwick – Chair  

Commissioner D. Bauer – Vice Chair 
Commissioner L. Payeur –  
Commissioner C. Smit 
Commissioner K. Dzaman  

  
Staff Chief Administrative Officer – J. Lamb 
 Manager of Finance – E. Lee 

Manager of Park Operations – D. Driediger 
 Communications, Media and Event Coordinator – A. Nadeau 
 Manager of Corporate Services / Corporate Officer – R. Litchfield 

Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw Enforcement – J. Spencer 

 

  
(1) CALL TO ORDER   

 
The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:06 pm. 
 

(2) RESOLUTION TO PROCEED TO CLOSED MEETING 
  

 THAT the meeting be closed to the public to consider matters pursuant to the following 
sections of the Community Charter: 
Section 90 (1), (c) labour relations or other employee relations; and  

Section 90 (1), (d) the security of the property of the Municipality. 
 

  
(3) RECONVENE 

 
The meeting reconvened at 5:03 pm. 

  
(4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

  
4816-21 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur   

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve amending the Agenda for the Regular Meeting of 

August 18, 2021, to include item 6, (e), Community Events and Engagement Committee Minutes 
dated August 16, 2021; and  
 
Items 7, (ai) through 7, (v), Correspondence, Development Variance Referral, emails and letters 
submitted by the public; and  
 
To include Items 7, (b), Correspondence, Letter submitted August 18, 2021, from residents Tars 
and Kara Malhi; and  
 

005



MINUTES       August 18, 2021 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 2 
 

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\2021.06.21 

  

To remove and replace item 8, (b), Bylaws, Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1179, 2020, 
Amendment Bylaw No. 1196, 2021 and report dated August 18, 2021; and 
 
To remove and replace item 8, (c), Bylaws, Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 
Amendment Bylaw No. 1197, 2021 and report dated August 18, 2021; and  

  
 To included item 11, (b), Reports by Commissioners, Recommendations from the Community 

Events and Engagement Committee, report dated August 18, 2021; and  
  
 THAT all delegations, reports, correspondence and other information set to the Agenda be 

received. 
  
 CARRIED 
  

(6) ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
  

4817-21 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Dzaman 
 

(a) THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board adopt the minutes of the Regular Meeting held July 21, 2021. 
  
 CARRIED 

  
(7) ADOPTION OF COMMITTEE MINUTES 

  
4818-21 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer   

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the May 21, 2021, Village Center Planning and 

Development Committee Minutes. 
  
 CARRIED  
  

4819-21 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the June 8, 2021, Foreshore Fundraising and 
Improvement Committee Minutes. 

   
 CARRIED 
  

4820-21 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer 
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the July 19, 2021, Community Events and 
Engagement Committee Minutes. 

  
 CARRIED 
  
4821-21 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer 
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the July 29, 2021, Community Events and 

Engagement Committee Minutes. 
  
 CARRIED 

006



MINUTES       August 18, 2021 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 3 
 

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\2021.06.21 

  

  
4822-21 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer 
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the August 16, 2021, Community Events and 

Engagement Committee Minutes. 
  
 CARRIED 
  

(7) CORRESPONDENCE  
  

(a) Development Variance Referral – 40 Lakeshore Drive  
 • Referral information for Development Variance Permit # 2021 – 15, 40 Lakeshore Drive  
 • Email dated August 16, 2021, from residents John and Rosemary Lee 
  
 
 
 

Chief Administrative Officer, Joe Lamb note the request for the development Variance 
Permit # 2021 – 15, 40 Lakeshore Drive. Applicants Charlotte and Mark DeBruyn were in 
attendance via Zoom. Applicants noted the intent to their request to apply for the variance 
for the bottom story. They noted that they would enjoy the lake front and would like to use 
the lake from their residence and to allow for extra parking.  
 
Chief Administrative Officer, Joe Lamb noted that the Fraser Valley Regional District view 
the development variance request, not for the basement but for the top story. The request is 
to vary from a basement and two stories to a basement and three stories.  
 
Chair Renwick noted that the applicants are asking for the third story, basement, first and 
second story as the application for consideration is for the third story. Applicants noted that 
they are under the understanding that they are not exceeding the height allowance.  
 
Chair Renwick inquired if the applicants noted to members of the community that they 
indicated that it does not matter what the Board does, the presidence has been set, and 
asked if those comments were made? The applicants noted that was not true. They noted 
that they are following the process as directed by the FRVD.  
 
Chief Administrative Officer, Joe Lamb noted that there were four letters submitted in 
opposition for the request.  
 

 

4823-21 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner: Dzaman  
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board supports the Development Variance Permit # 2021 – 15, 40 
Lakeshore Drive to vary the definition of height in the Zoning Bylaw 1375 from two stories plus 
basement and roof to three stories plus basement and roof; and   

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board provide the Fraser Valley Regional District with their response to 
the Development Variance Permit for 40 Lakeshore Drive.  
 
CARRIED 
 
Chair Renwick and Commissioner Dzaman voted in opposition. 

 

007



MINUTES       August 18, 2021 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 4 
 

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\2021.06.21 

  

(b) Parking Allowance Request  
 • Email dated August 3, 2021, from Tom and Shawn Windt regarding parking for residents 

along First and Second Avenue 
 • Letter submitted August 16, 2021, from residents, Tars and Kara Malhi 
  
4824-21 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Dzaman  

 
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board refer this back to staff to provide a comprehensive study on 

the greenspaces and parking availability in particular 212 First Avenue and 112 First Avenue; 
and  

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the email from Tom and for information and provide 

the staff with direction regarding the use of the area adjacent to 212 First Avenue and 112 First 
Avenue. 

  
 CARRIED 
 Commissioner Payeur voted in opposition. 
  

(c) Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP) – Environmental Quality (EQ) Program, 
Project #G0329 – Cultus Lake North Wastewater Treatment Plant  

 • Letter dated July 8, 2021, from Brian Bedford, Executive Director, Local Government 
Infrastructure and Finance  

  
4825-21 Moved by: Commissioner Dzaman  Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur 

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board release the letter to the public from Brian Bedford, Executive 

Director, Local Government Infrastructure and Finance with respect to Sewer Project #G0329 – 
Cultus Lake North Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

  
 CARRIED 

  
(8) BYLAWS  

  
(a) Main Beach Dock Capital Reserve Fund No. 1194, 2021 

 Tree Replacement Reserve Fund Amendment Bylaw No 1195, 2021 
 • Main Beach Dock Capital Reserve Fund No. 1194, 2021 
 • Tree Replacement Reserve Fund Amendment Bylaw No 1195, 2021 
  

4826-21 Moved by: Commissioner Dzaman  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer   
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to Main Beach Dock Reserve Fund Bylaw 

No. 1194, 2021. 
 

 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Tree Replacement Reserve Fund 
Amendment Bylaw No. 1195, 2021. 
 

 CARRIED 
  

(b) Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1179, 2020, Amendment Bylaw No. 1196, 2021 
 • Report dated August 18, 2021, from Jacquie Spencer, Manager of Visitor Services, 

Accommodations and Bylaw Enforcement   

008



MINUTES       August 18, 2021 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 5 
 

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\2021.06.21 

  

 • Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1179, 2020, Amendment Bylaw No. 1196, 2021 
  

4827-21 Moved by: Commissioner Dzaman  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer   
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give First, Second and Third Readings to the Boating and 

Foreshore Bylaw No. 1179, 2020, Amendment Bylaw No. 1196, 2021. 
  
 CARRIED 
  

(c) Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1197, 2021  
 • Report dated August 18, 2021, from Jacquie Spencer, Manager of Visitor Services, 

Accommodations and Bylaw Enforcement   
 • Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1197, 2021 
  

4828-21 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur  
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give First, Second and Third Readings to the Bylaw Notice 

Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1197, 2021. 
  

 CARRIED 
  

(9) CONSENT AGENDA  
 2021 Second Quarter Reports 

 
 -           Finance  

- Cultus Lake Parking 
- Public Works  
- Campground and Cabins  
- Bylaw Compliance and Enforcement  
- Fire Department  
- Lease Assignment 
 

4829-21 Moved by: Commissioner Payeur  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  
  

 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the 2021 Second Quarter reports for information 
  
 CARRIED 
  

(10) REPORTS BY STAFF 
  

(a) Media Releases and Staff Contact with the Media Policy 
 • Report dated August 18, 2021, from Rachel Litchfield, Manager of Corporate Services / 

Corporate Officer 
  

4830-21 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Smit  
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the Administrative Policy, Media Release and 

Staff Contact with the Media and that it replace the 2018 Cultus Lake Media Policy.  
  
 CARRIED  

009



MINUTES       August 18, 2021 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 6 
 

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\2021.06.21 

  

  
(b) Star Days Days Event 

 • Report dated August 18, 2021, from Amanda Nadeau, Communications, Media and Events 
Coordinator 

  
4831-21 Moved by: Commissioner Dzaman  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the Star Days Days Special Event on Friday 

September 24th, Saturday September 25th, and Sunday September 26th, 2021; 
 
THAT the parking fees in Lot A (Main Beach) for the duration of the Star Days Days Special 
Event, September 24th to September 26th, 2021, be waived; 
 
THAT the Star Days Days Special Event organizers be permitted to collect parking fees at Lot 
A (Main Beach) for profit for the duration of the event, September 24th to September 26th, 2021; 
 
THAT the Special Event Application fee of $100 for the 2021 Star Days Days Special Event be 
waived; 
 
THAT the Swim Line Removal and Replacement fee of $500 for the 2021 Star Days Days 
Special Event be waived and 
 
THAT participants of the 2021 Star Days Days be permitted to camp at Main Beach in 
designated areas. 
 

 CARRIED 

  

(c) Cultus Lake Community Cleanup 
 • Report dated August 18, 2021 from Amanda Nadeau, Communications, Media and Events 

Coordinator 
  

4832-21 Moved by: Commissioner Payeur  Seconded by: Commissioner Smit  
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the Cultus Lake Park Community Cleanup on 

September 18th, 2021; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve waiving the $100 application fee. 
 

 CARRIED 
  

(11) COMMMISSIONERS REPORTS  
  

(a) Recommendations from the Community Events and Engagement Committee  
• Report dated August 18, 2021 from Kirk Dzaman, Chair, Community Events and 

Engagement Committee 
  

4833-21 Moved by: Commissioner Dzaman  Seconded by: Commissioner S  

010



MINUTES       August 18, 2021 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 7 
 

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\2021.06.21 

  
  
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Community Events and Engagement Committee requests the Cultus 

Lake Park Board allow any funds that are raised, above the cost to hold Blanc on the Beach 
Event, will be allocated to the Foreshore Reserve Fund. 
 

 CARRIED  
  

(b) Recommendations from the Community Events and Engagement Committee  
• Report dated August 18, 2021 from Kirk Dzaman, Chair, Community Events and 

Engagement Committee 
  

4834-21 Moved by: Commissioner Dzaman  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer   
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Community Events and Engagement Committee request the Cultus 

Lake Park Board approve that the Community Events and Engagement Committee be able to 
host a community movie night at Main Beach on September 3, 2021, pending the approval of 
licensing and the availability of the equipment required. 

  
 CARRIED 
  

(12) COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION 
  
 There were no questions submitted for the month of August. 
  

(13) PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
  
 Question: 
 Rita LeBlanc, First Ave. – Inquired if there is a possibility to cap Short Term Rental? She noted 

that she is fine with long term but had concerns with operation of the short-term rentals.  
  
 Answer: 

Chair Renwick noted that the process that was discussed would be to review the process within 
the year and requested that staff will come back with further information on any required 
changes to the bylaw in November of 2021.  

  
(14) ADJOURNMENT 

  
4835-21 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer   

 
THAT the Regular Meeting of the Cultus Lake Park Board held on August 18, 2021 be adjourned 
at 5:59 pm. 
 
CARRIED  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

011



MINUTES       August 18, 2021 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 8 
 

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\2021.06.21 

 

 
 
 
I hereby certify the preceding to be a true and correct account of the meeting of the Cultus 
Lake Park Board held August 18, 2021. 
 

 

                                  

_____________________________                           ____________________________ 
David Renwick  Joe Lamb 
Chair Chief Administrative Officer 
 

 

 
 

012



 
 

VILLAGE CENTER PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
MEETING MINUTES 

FRIDAY, JULY 16, 2021 
CULTUS LAKE PARK OFFICE BOARDROOM  
4165 Columbia Valley Highway, Cultus Lake, BC 

 
Present Commissioner K. Dzaman – Chair 

Commissioner D. Bauer – Vice-Chair – Via Zoom 

Committee 
Members 

B. Vandenbrink 
 E. Vance 
 P. Vander Helm 
 C. Elstak – Via Zoom 
 B. Shirley – Via Zoom 
 G. Senft – Via Zoom 
 C. Rogozinski – Via Zoom 
 K. Renwick – Via Zoom 
  
Staff Chief Administrative Officer – J. Lamb 
 Lease Administrator – K. Craig 
 Communications, Media and Events Coordinator – A. Nadeau 
  
Member of 
the Public 

 

  
Regrets   
  

(1) CALL TO ORDER   
 
The Chair called the meeting to order at 9:04 am. 

  
(2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

  
 Moved by: C. Rogozinski Seconded by: E. Vance 

  
 THAT the agenda for the July 16, 2021 Village Center Planning and Development Committee be 

approved. 
  
 CARRIED  
  
 Moved by: K. Dzaman  Seconded by: E. Vance 
  
 THAT the agenda for the July 16, 2021 Village Center Planning and Development Committee be 

amended by moving item 4 into closed. 
  
 CARRIED 
  

(3) APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
  
 Moved by: E. Vance Seconded by: B. Shirley 
  
  
  

013



MINUTES       July 16, 2021 
Village Center Planning and Development                                                                                             Page 2 
 

  
 THAT the minutes of the May 21, 2021 Village Center Planning and Development Committee be 

approved as amended by correcting the spelling of Brent Shirley’s name. 
  
 CARRIED 
  

(4) SURVEY RESULTS (INTERIM REPORT) 
  
 RESOLUTION TO PROCEED TO CLOSED MEETING 
  
 Moved by: D. Bauer   Seconded by: B. Vandenbrink 
  
 THAT the Village Center Planning and Development Committees discussion regarding Section 4 

Interim Survey Results, be closed to the public as the survey is still available for the public to 
complete.  

  
 CARRIED 
  
 RECONVENE 
  
 The meeting reconvened at 9:24 am. 
  

(5) SEWER UPDATE 
  
 • Status of Grant 
 o FVRD was not successful in acquiring a grant for the sewer system and their 

staff will meet and discuss options to move forward.  
 o The committee discussed different options to acquire funds for the sewer 

system.  
  
 • Review of needs to accommodate re: development (sewer stage 2) 
 o Stage 1 needs to be up and running for a year prior to stage 2, which is 

required for the village center. 
  
 • Most recent estimate of sewer cost discussion 
 o $14 million is an estimate. 
  

(6) SOOWHALIE RELATIONSHIP 
  
 The committee discussed the importance of this relationship and the impact the development of 

the village center.  
 K. Dzaman to follow up. 
  

(7) STAFF UPDATES 
  
 • Park Capacity Study 
 o No update, staff to look into this the fall. The committee discussed what “park 

capacity” means. 
  
 • Update on Hydro in relation to a new development 
 o Hydro responded that there is enough capacity for a redevelopment 
  
 • Update on School Lease 
 o Staff to update committee at the next meeting. 
  
  

014



MINUTES       July 16, 2021 
Village Center Planning and Development                                                                                             Page 3 
 

 

(8) RFP PROCESS AND TIMELINE DISCUSSION 
  
 Staff resources will be available after the high season, possibly October, to start working on this 

document. 
  

(9) OPEN DISCUSSION 
  
 • A discussion was had regarding the difference between an expression of interest and an 

RFP. 
  
 • A discussion was had about how the sewer system and the village development can 

work together. 
  
 • The committee discussed interest of potential commercial leaseholders. 
  
 • Park budget to go to the board in November. 
  

(10) PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
  
 No public at this meeting 
  

(11) NEXT MEETING DATE AND TIME 
  
 August 20, 2021 at 9:00 am 
  

(12) ADJOURNMENT 
  

 Moved by: E. Vance  Seconded by: G. Senft 
 
THAT the Village Center Planning and Development Committee meeting held on July 16, 
2021 be adjourned at 10:06 am. 
 
CARRIED  

 

015



016



 
 

VILLAGE CENTER PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
MEETING MINUTES 
FRIDAY, AUGUST 20, 2021 

CULTUS LAKE PARK OFFICE BOARDROOM  
4165 Columbia Valley Highway, Cultus Lake, BC 

 
Present Commissioner K. Dzaman – Chair 

Commissioner D. Bauer – Vice-Chair  

Committee 
Members 

 
 E. Vance – Via Zoom 
 P. Vander Helm – Via Zoom 
 C. Elstak – Via Zoom 
 B. Shirley – Via Zoom 
 G. Senft – Via Zoom 
 C. Rogozinski  
  
  
Staff Chief Administrative Officer – J. Lamb 
 Lease Administrator – K. Craig 
 Communications, Media and Events Coordinator – A. Nadeau 
  
Member of 
the Public 

 

  
Regrets  B. Vandenbrink 
 K. Renwick  
  

(1) CALL TO ORDER   
 
The Chair called the meeting to order at 9:02 am. 

  
(2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

  
 Moved by: D. Bauer   Seconded by: C. Rogozinski 

  
 THAT the agenda for the August 20, 2021 Village Center Planning and Development Committee 

be approved. 
  
 CARRIED  
  

(3) APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
  
 Moved by: D. Bauer   Seconded by: E. Vance 
  
 THAT the minutes of the July 16, 2021 Village Center Planning and Development Committee be 

approved. 
  
 CARRIED 
  
  
  
  

017



MINUTES       August 20, 2021 
Village Center Planning and Development                                                                                             Page 2 
 

(4) SURVEY RESULTS  
  
 • Staff presented the Village Center Planning and Development survey results to the 

committee. 
 • The committee had a discussion regarding the results. 
 • The committee made a special note that 80% of respondents were in favor of a portion of 

the revenue from the redevelopment go to off-setting costs of the Park, i.e. Sewer, water, 
upgrades, etc. 

  
(5) STAFF UPDATES 

  
 • The CAO updated the committee regarding the status of the FVRD Waste Water 

Treatment plant project. 
 • The committee discussed how the impact of the sewer could affect the development of 

the village center. 
 • The CAO updated the committee on the status of the Cultus Lake Community School 

lease.  
 • Staff to move forward with the Park Capacity Study in the fall. 
  

(6) CORRESPONDENCE 
  
 • Email and article from E. Vance were received by the committee. 
 • The committee had a discussion regarding recent developments similar to the future 

Village Center development concept. 
  

(7) OPEN DISCUSSION 
  
 • Next step is to have a budget to be able to move forward with preliminary plans and 

studies required.  
 • The committee discussed having staff investigate initially and find out costs associated 

with plans.   
 • The committee Chair discussed the typical timeline and process regarding RFP (Request 

for Proposal) documents. 
 • The committee discussed the option to have the EOI, or RFP document process 

considered alongside the assistance of a qualified and experience planning persons 
and/or qualified planning and consulting firm. 

  
 Moved by: D. Bauer   Seconded by: C. Rogozinski 
  
 THAT the Village Center Planning and Development Committee request the Cultus Lake Park 

Board consider funding for professional consultation regarding the planning and re development 
of the Village Center during the 2022 budget process. 

  
 CARRIED 
  

(8) PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
  
 No public at this meeting 
  

(9) NEXT MEETING DATE AND TIME 
  
 October 8, 2021 at 9:00 pm 
  

(10) ADJOURNMENT 
  

 Moved by:  D. Bauer   Seconded by: C. Rogozinski 

018



MINUTES       August 20, 2021 
Village Center Planning and Development                                                                                             Page 3 
 

 

 
THAT the Village Center Planning and Development Committee meeting held on August 20, 
2021 be adjourned at 10:17 am. 
 
CARRIED  
 

019



020



 

  

    
  

    
     

                   
                   

               

                   

   

                       
      

             

 
    

  

       
        

     

                    
                

                    

         
                 

                  

                   

              

                  
                  

                   
                  

   

 

   

021



 
   

    
  

     

                   
           

                   

          

 
  

     

       

     

    

     

                  
                

                 
                 

               
                  

                     
               

                    

                    

                 

                   
                 
                  

                   
                    

       

                 
                  

                

                    

022



                
                   

                   

    

 

 

 

023



024



 

 Cultus Lake Park  
 BOATING AND FORESHORE BYLAW NO. 1179, 2020 

Amendment Bylaw No. 1196, 2021 
A Bylaw to amend the Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1179, 2020 

______________________________________________________________ 

The Board for Cultus Lake Park did enact a bylaw cited as “Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore 
Bylaw No. 1179, 2020; 
 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park deems it advisable to amend said bylaw;  
 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
1. TITLE 

 
This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 
1179, 2020 Amendment Bylaw No. 1196, 2021. 
 

2. AMENDMENTS 
 
2.1 Delete Section 3.3 (m) No person will store or leave any boat or ancillary or                             

related equipment on Park property overnight. 
 
2.2 Add Section 3.3 (m) No person will leave any boat, inflatable, personal watercraft or 

ancillary or related equipment on Park property between the hours of 11:00 pm and 7:00 
am. Boats, inflatables, and personal watercrafts attached to registered buoys, boat lifts 
and mooring whips or any organizations or persons with written approval from the CAO, 
will be exempt from this clause. 

 

3. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 READ A FIRST TIME this 18 day of AUGUST, 2021 
 
 READ A SECOND TIME this 18 day of AUGUST, 2021 
 
 READ A THIRD TIME this 18 day of AUGUST, 2021 
 
 
 ADOPTED this XX day of XXX, 2021 

 
 
 

   ______________________ 
David Renwick, Chair     Joe Lamb,  
Cultus Lake Park Board    Chief Administrative Officer 

025



 

 
 
 
 
 
    
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true 
and correct copy of Cultus Lake Park Boating                                
and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1179, 2020 Amendment  
Bylaw No. 1196, 2021 
 
 
____________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 

026



 

 Cultus Lake Park  
BYLAW NOTICE ENFORCEMENT BYLAW NO. 1140, 2019 

Amendment Bylaw No. 1197, 2021 
A Bylaw to amend the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 

______________________________________________________________ 

The Board for Cultus Lake Park did enact a bylaw cited as “Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice 
Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2021. 
 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park deems it advisable to amend said bylaw;  
 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
1. TITLE 

 
This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw 
No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1197, 2021. 
 

2. AMENDMENTS 
 
2.1 From Schedule A-3, Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1179, 2020, 

delete section 3.3 (m) No person will leave any boat or ancillary or related equipment on 
Park property overnight and replace with section 3.3 (m) No person will leave any boat, 
inflatable, personal watercraft or ancillary or related equipment on Park property between 
the hours of 11:00 pm and 7:00 am. Boats, inflatables, and personal watercrafts attached 
to registered buoys, boat lifts and mooring whips or any organizations or persons with 
written approval from the CAO, will be exempt from this clause. Fines stay the same. 

 
2.2 From Schedule A-14, Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1190, 

2021, delete section 12.1 Park over delignated parking lines and replace with 12.10 Park 
over delineated parking lines. Fines stay the same. 
 

3. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 READ A FIRST TIME this 18th day of August, 2021 
 
 READ A SECOND TIME this 18th day of August, 2021 
 
 READ A THIRD TIME this 18th day of August, 2021 
 
 ADOPTED this XX day of XXX, 202X 

 
 

    ______________________ 
David Renwick, Chair     Joe Lamb  
Cultus Lake Park Board    Chief Administrative Officer 

027



 

 
 
    
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true 
and correct copy of Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice  
Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment  
Bylaw No. 1197, 2021. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 

028



s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-70 - reports - board meetings\2021\2021 09 15\2021.09.15 - greenspace usage.doc 

 
 

 
 

CULTUS LAKE PARK 
 

REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD 
 
DATE:                   September 15, 2021 FILE:  0550  
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Jacquie Spencer 
                              Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement 
 
SUBJECT:            Parking Options for Greenspace / Fire Lane 
 
 
PURPOSE:  
 
To provide the Board with information and potential options regarding current green space lots & fire 
lanes within the residential area on the east side of Cultus Lake Park.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board continue to designate Area #4, #5, #7, #8, #9, #12, and #13 as Fire 
Lanes, and further, to direct staff to proceed with the development of “No Parking” signage for these 
areas. 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct staff to develop Area #1 as a designated fire lane between 
109 and 110/111 with one parking stall on the side of 110 First Avenue. 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct staff to develop Area #2 by adding four (4) parking stalls with 
a public access pathway between 211 First Avenue and 213 First Avenue. 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct staff to arrange to have a land survey completed regarding 
Area #3, between 116 First Avenue and 118 First Avenue to confirm space availability for two parking 
stalls and a public access pathway. 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct staff to develop Area #6 as a designated fire lane between 
132 First Avenue and 134 First Avenue, with the option for one parking stall on the side of 134 First 
Avenue. 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct staff to extend Area #10 & Area #11, Birch Street Park, by 
arranging to have the mailbox relocated to add one additional parking stall. 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct staff to develop Area #14 between 232 First Avenue and 234 
First Avenue by adding four (4) parking stalls, two off Second Avenue and two off First Avenue 
including a public access pathway. 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct staff to develop Area #15, 212 First Avenue, by adding two 
parking stalls and a public access pathway.  
 
 
 

029



 

  

 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the August 18, 2021 Board meeting, letters were received by residence both in favor and opposed 
to allowing vehicles to park next to the property at 212 First Avenue in front of the green space 
parkland. This prompted a Board discussion and direction to staff to review all the green spaces and 
fire lanes within the east side residential area, and report back at the September Board meeting. 
 
On August 24, 2021 staff conducted a walk about to review all the noted parking areas, breezeways, 
fire lanes and green spaces (Attachment 1). The map outlines the number that corresponds to each 
identified area, #1 through #15. Staff took approximate measurements of each area to ensure 
appropriate space requirements for parking, as well as space for a public access pathway. For photos 
area mark ups see (Attachment 2). 
 
Historically, the areas that are between residential lots that end in a 9 & 0 have been designated as 
fire lanes and are currently signed that way.  Staff propose that clearer signage be placed in the fire 
lanes.   
 
Should the Board determine, staff would like to proceed with the development of up to 15 additional 
parking stalls in the residential area, staff would create and mark all stalls. Parking stall signage would 
read “Registered Residential / Guest Parking Only”.  Residents would be required to register their 
vehicle when accessing one of these parking stalls.   
 
The signage used in this report is for illustration purposes only and staff would have new signs 
developed that are consistent with the other parking signage developed in 2021 within the Park. In 
addition, trees were photoshopped in some of the photos to demonstrate to the Board another option 
rather than the use of bollards. 
 
Area #1 – designated as a fire lane between 109 and 110/111 with the option for one parking stall on 
110 lot side as indicated in attached photo. 
 
Area #2 – twenty feet wide with length of 18 feet from grass edge to yellow line on roadway on both 
First and Second Avenue. Potential gain of four (4) parking stalls with public access pathway between 
211 First Avenue and 213 First Avenue.  
 
Area #3 – between 116 First Avenue and 118 First Avenue, on the 118 First Avenue side, a survey 
review is required to confirm if the Park land is 24 feet wide with the depth of 18 feet.  An option may 
be to place two (2) parking stalls and leave the 116 First Avenue side open for public access pathway 
of 5 feet near the power pole. 
 
Area #4 – designated fire lane between 119 First Avenue and 120 First Avenue. 
 
Area #5 – designated fire lane between 129 First Avenue and 130 First Avenue. 
 
Area #6 – between 132 First Avenue and 134 First Avenue, this is currently designated as a fire lane 
with the option for one (1) parking stall on the 134 First Avenue side. 
 
Area #7 - designated fire lane between 139 First Avenue and 140 First Avenue. 
 
Area #8 – between 149 First Avenue and 150 First Avenue there is currently a pump station and a 
designated fire lane. 
 
Area #9 – designated fire lane between 159 First Avenue and 160 First Avenue. 
 
Area #10 – Birch Street Park currently has three (3) parking stalls and one (1) accessible parking stall. 

030



 

  

 
 
Area #11 – 162 First Avenue beside Birch Street Park there is an option for one (1) additional parking 
stall if mailbox is relocated  
 
Area #12 - designated fire lane between 169 First Avenue and 170 First Avenue. 
 
Area #13 – designated fire lane between 178 First Avenue and 180 First Avenue is known as 179 
First Avenue.  This area was renumbered upon completion of a Park survey in 1982. 
 
Area #14 – between 232 First Avenue and 234 First Avenue, on the 234 First Avenue side there is 16 
feet on the top side of the green space below Spruce Street with the potential for two parking stalls off 
Second Avenue and two parking stalls off First Avenue, plus a public access pathway. 
 
Area #15 – 212 First Avenue is 20 feet wide and 18 feet off Second Avenue with a depth of 18 feet off 
First Avenue.  There is a potential for tow (2) parking stalls and a public access pathway. 
 
 
In conclusion, there are the potential for fifteen (15) additional residential / guest parking stalls that are 
represented in this report. The staff have put forward the recommendations by lot so that the Board 
can consider the additional parking spaces by area rather than an all or nothing scenario.   
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: 
This report does not impact the Board’s Strategic Plan Initiative. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Prepared by:  Approved for submission to the Board: 

                                                           
 

__________________________________ ______________________________ 
Jacquie Spencer  Joe Lamb 
Manager of Visitor Services,  Chief Administrative Officer  
Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement 

031



032



 
 

 

  

 

 
 

 

  

 

    
      

 

 

        
 

    
 

 
 

      
       

     

    

  
    

      
      

 
   
        

        

  
 

 

 

  
  

        

033



034



035



036



037



038



039



#6, 132/134 First Avenue - Currently designated fire lane with possible 
option for 1 registered residential parking stall on 134 side.

Second Avenue access off Fir, Hemlock, Spruce and Balsam 
street.

040



041



042



043



#10, Birch Street Park - has 3 parking stalls and 1 handicap parking stall.

044



045



046



047



048



049



050



  

  

  

    

   
    

         

                 
             

                  
        

                 
                   

                
                

               
            

            
                

             

                
                 

            
               
       

              
                

                   
         

               
 

051



 

            

      

 

   

 
  

052



053



054



           

          

       

              

                

          

       

        

                

  

 

         

          

          

              

       

             

  

             

               

            

       
 

055



  

       

 

  

  

  

    
 

   

056



 

  

057



058



059



               

            

            

            

                 

                

             

       

                  

               

                 

                  

              

                 

               

                

                 

               

              

  

  

 
   

     

 

 

 

 

060



 

  

  

   

 
    

    

                
          

               
   

             
                  

    

                   
                   

              
                

            

 

            

      

 

   
  

061



062



063



            

          

    

 
  

            
              

             

                 
       

          

          
          

 

          

         

         

              

       

 
             

 

 

               
               

               
        

        

      

  

        

064



   

     

065



066



  

  

 

  

 
      

       

                 
     

             
            

      

              
               

               

  

      

 
 

 
   

  

 
  

067


	Blank Page



